
Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 7 February 2019

Page 1

Agenda
Contact: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone number 01235 422524
Email: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 30 January 2019
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Thursday, 7 February 2019 at 7.00 pm 
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:

Councillors
Debby Hallett (Chairman)
Chris Palmer (Vice-chairman)

Vicky Jenkins 
Sandy Lovatt

Mike Badcock
Matthew Barber

Ben Mabbett
Judy Roberts

Robert Hall

Preferred Substitutes

Yvonne Constance Chris McCarthy
StJohn Dickson Emily Smith 
Anthony Hayward
Dudley Hoddinott
Simon Howell

Reg Waite
Catherine Webber

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 7 February 2019

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

Council's Vision 

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, energy 
and efficiency. 
 
1. Apologies for absence 
  
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2. Minutes 
(Pages 4 - 6) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held 
on 29 November 2018 (attached).  

3. Declarations of interest 
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Public participation 
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6. Budget 2019/20 
  
To consider the report of the head of finance (to follow).

7. 2017/18 performance report for The Beacon, Wantage. 
(Pages 7 - 17) 
 
To consider the report of the head of community services (attached).



Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 7 February 2019

Page 3

8. Corporate services contract changes and action plan update 
(Pages 18 - 21) 
 
To consider the report of the head of partnership and insight (attached).

9. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 22 - 23) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are confirmed, the 
items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or rearranged without further 
notice.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 29 November 2018 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 29 November 2018 at 7.00 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Chris Palmer (Vice-Chairman), 
Matthew Barber, Robert Hall, Vicky Jenkins, Sandy Lovatt, Ben Mabbett, Judy Roberts 
and Katie Finch (In place of Mike Badcock)

Officers: 

Jayne Bolton, Suzanne Malcolm, Adrianna Partridge, Donna Pentelow and Ron Schrieber

Also present: 

Councillors Alice Badcock and Mike Murray

Sc.48 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Mike Badcock (substituted by Katie Finch), submitted apologies.

Sc.49 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2018 were agreed as an accurate record 
and were signed by the Chairman.

Sc.50 Declarations of interest 

None.

Sc.51 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

Sc.52 Public participation 

None.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 29 November 2018 Sc.2

Sc.53 Developing a health and wellbeing strategy for Vale of White 
Horse 

The committee considered the report of the head of community services regarding the 
intention to develop a health and wellbeing strategy for the Vale of White Horse

Councillor Alice Badcock, Cabinet member for community services, introduced the report.  
Also present to answer questions was Donna Pentelow, head of community services.

The committee was informed that it was intended to develop a strategy that set out the 
council’s aspirations and ambitions for health and wellbeing in the Vale. The scope of the 
strategy would need to be determined, but could involve services from across the council. 
There was also significant scope for partnership working both with other public sector 
organisations and with the voluntary and community sector.

Whilst broadly welcoming the proposal, members made a number of observations, 
including:

 The strategy would need to complement, rather than duplicate, other existing health 
and wellbeing strategies.

 Consideration should be given to retitling the strategy to avoid confusion with other 
health and wellbeing strategies.

 The strategy should set out what success would look like and how it will be 
quantified.

 As the strategy would also apply to South Oxfordshire, future reports on its 
development should be submitted to the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED: to 

1. Note the principle of developing a health and wellbeing strategy and request Cabinet 
to take the committee’s views, as set out above, into account.

2. Request that future reports on the development of the strategy be submitted to the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee.

Sc.54 Community Infrastructure Levy - spending strategy 

The committee considered the report of the head of development and regeneration on the 
draft Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending strategy, adopted by the Council in 
November 2017.

Councillor Mike Murray, Cabinet member for development and regeneration, introduced 
the report.  Also present to answer questions were Suzanne Malcolm, head development 
and regeneration, and Jayne Bolton, infrastructure and development manager.

In response to members’ questions, it was reported that:

 CIL expenditure aimed at mitigating the infrastructure impacts of an individual 
development, as well as the overall cumulative effect of development, as CIL will 
not generate sufficient income to meet all infrastructure requirements. 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 29 November 2018 Sc.3

 The allocation of funding to Oxfordshire County Council, the Clinical Commissioning 
Group and to various infrastructure types within the district, was partly based on 
historic spending.  However, these percentages would be reviewed annually, based 
on performance and council infrastructure policies.

 Under the new staffing structure, staff resources had been allocated to providing 
advice and support to town and parish councils.

 Officers would liaise with the Oxfordshire Association of Local Councils regarding 
appropriate advice to enable town and parish clerks to manage CIL spending on 
larger infrastructure projects should they wish to.

Whilst broadly welcoming the draft CIL spending strategy, the committee suggested that:

 Further clarification be provided regarding the duty to pass on CIL revenues to 
towns/parishes, subject to a cap per existing council tax dwelling.

 The consequences of a town/parish not spending its CIL revenues within 5 years be 
included.

RESOLVED: to note the report and request the Cabinet member to take the committee’s 
views, as set out above, into account.

Sc.55 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings 

The committee noted its work programme and, in view of the number of items scheduled 
for its February meeting, asked officers to consider deferring some to the March 
committee.

The meeting closed at 8.39 pm

Page 6



Scrutiny committee

Report of Head of Community Services

Author: Duncan Grainge 

Telephone: 01235 422246

Textphone: 18001 01235 422246

E-mail: duncan.grainge@southandvale.gov.uk

Cabinet member responsible: Alice Badcock

Tel:  07824 333259

E-mail: alice.badcock@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

DATE:  7 February 2019

2017/18 performance report for The Beacon, 
Wantage.

Recommendation

Scrutiny committee is asked to note The Beacon’s performance for 2017/18, and to 
note the corrected financial figures as presented in Tables 1 and 2.

Purpose of report

1. Following the identification of incorrect financial data being presented to 
Scrutiny in October 2018, the Chairman requested a corrected report for 
2017/18, with an addendum to address the inconsistencies with the two prior 
years, and a discussion of steps taken and planned so that this doesn't recur. 
As a result the format of this report is similar to the report presented in October 
2018, but with the corrections. 

2. The report also updates the committee on the actions taken in response to its 
recommendations from September 2017, and outlines progress made towards 
The Beacon’s 2018/19 targets. 

Strategic objectives 

3. The Beacon is a community centre and venue delivering a wide range of 
services, events and activities. It encourages the wider community of VOWH to 
participate in activities designed to promote health and wellbeing, leisure 
activities for all age groups. 

4. The provision of The Beacon contributes towards achieving the council’s 
strategic objective “sustainable communities and well-being” and the corporate 

CONFIDEN
TIAL

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

mailto:alice.badcock@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


priority of “expanding the range and quality of activities at The Beacon, 
Wantage”.  

Background 
5. The vision for The Beacon is that it will be the heart of the community. It is a 

council run facility offering opportunities for residents to enjoy celebrations and 
performances, for business use, as well as providing a coffee shop for 
residents to meet existing or new friends.  

6. In September 2017, the Scrutiny Committee recommended the cabinet member 
for community services report on the following: 

 Income and expenditure budgets
 Environmentally friendly and energy saving measures
 The Beacon’s role as a community asset

7. The three year business plan (2016-2019) for The Beacon sets out the key 
objectives for the facility and the key performance indicators. This is now 
coming to the end and work has started on drafting the next three-year 
business plan for The Beacon.

KPIs for 2017/18

The key performance indicators for 2017/18 are:
 KPI 1: year on year increase in revenue and a reduction in the council 

contribution (previously reported as the deficit).
 KPI 2: increase in occupancy with more people using the venue more often
 KPI 3: attract new audiences and users
 KPI 4: improve the customer experience to ensure repeat business
 KPI 5: raise awareness of the facility and improve communication

KPI 1: Increase in revenue and a reduction in the council contribution 
(previously reported as the deficit) 

8. The council’s planned budget for The Beacon, which is agreed annually at 
Council, was £209,280, a slight reduction on 2016/17. At year end, The Beacon 
had exceeded that budget by £31,068. This was due to a number of reasons. 
The Beacon did not achieve its income target. This is the second year running it 
has failed to meet the target, despite the actual income generated increasing 
on previous years. Actual expenditure also exceeded the budgeted expenditure 
due to increased costs of consumables and materials, food and drink stock 
price increases and utility costs and business rates as well as increased spend 
on shows. The council contribution previously reported as “the deficit”, was 
reduced compared with 2016/17, but is still at its highest since 2014/15. 
Officers will be reviewing expenditure and the income targets as part of the 
budget setting process for 2019/20.

9. During 2017/18 it became evident that when the income targets were set, the 
VAT payments were not taken into consideration. This has been resolved. 
Table 1 below shows the expenditure and income, with the adjustment for VAT 
taken into consideration. 

Page 8



Table 1 Financial performance 2013-14 to 2017-18

Financial 
Year

Budgeted 
Income

Actual 
Income

Budgeted 
Expenditure

Actual 
Expenditure

Planned 
Budget1

Council 
Contribution2

Variance 
against 
budget

2013/14 -96,010 -102,646 304,334 286,964 208,324 184,318 -24,006
2014/15 -126,010 -156,441 306,985 383,084 180,975 226,643 45,668
2015/16 -170,949 -188,129 381,176 396,386 210,227 208,257 -1,970
2016/17 -192,449 -185,827 404,443 431,070 211,994 245,243 33,249
2017/18 -249,800 -225,315 459,080 465,663 209,280 240,348 31,068

 

10.Table 2 provides the breakdown of expenditure in 2017/18, using the 
standard Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
breakdown. This table shows that actual expenditure exceeded the 
planned budget by £6,583. This is largely explained by the increase in 
spend on performers fees, although this was offset by the income 
generated and resulted in a 67% increase in ticket sales. The Third Party 
Payments of £35,000 relate to the costs of the Vinci contract, which had 
not been separated out at the time of budget setting. The budget to cover 
these costs was still contained within the employee costs and premises 
budgets. 

 Table 2 Planned Budget Actual Expenditure Variance
Employee Costs                  276,635            255,710 - 20,925
Premises                    77,075              58,321 - 18,754 
Travel costs 450                    107 - 343 
Supplies and 
Services                  104,920            116,525            11,605 

Third Party Payments                            0               35,000            35,000 
Total                  459,080            465,663              6,583 

11.The chart below shows how the income is broken down and shows that our 
regular hirers are still our main source of income. However, compared with 
2016/17 data, income from ticket sales has increased from 13 per cent to 
26 per cent, and seen the biggest growth. 

1 net spend for the year
2 Actual net spend for the year

Page 9



KPI 2: Increase in occupancy with more people using the venue more often
12.One of the key metrics to measure The Beacon’s performance is the average 

cost per occupied hour. The industry standard for this type of facility is around 
40 per cent occupancy, which equates to 6,585 hours per year, or just under 
550 hours a month. Occupancy rates have more than doubled in the last five 
years and we aim to reach the industry standard by 2020 through innovative 
marketing strategies, community involvement and actively targeting commercial 
hirers for the larger spaces for meeting and seminars.
 

13.When considering the number of hours that the facility is occupied and the 
council contribution, the average cost per occupied hour has increased over the 
last two years. In 2013/14 it cost the council £45.35 for every hour the building 
was occupied. By 2017/18 this cost had increased to £47.29. This is largely due 
to a 19% decrease in occupied hours in 2017/18.

Council 
Contribution 
(Actual net spend) 

Average cost 
per occupied 
hourYear

 

Total hours 
of 
occupancy

Percentage of 
available hours 
booked

 
2013/14 £184,318 4064 25% £45.35
2014/15 £226,643 5070 31% £44.70
2015/16 £208,257 6060 37% £34.37
2016/17 £245,243 6270 38% £39.11
2017/18 £240,348 5082 31% £47.29

14.This decrease in occupancy is due to several factors. These include a decrease 
in the overall number of regular hirers; King Alfred’s Academy have now built 
their own hall and no longer require the main auditorium (The Ridgeway) as 
frequently. Setting all tariffs at the same rate for all existing and potential hirers 
has resulted in the loss of some business and some classes cancelled or did 
not rebook due to low attendance. However, we feel that now the room tariffs 
are fair and equitable for all this loss has now plateaued. New marketing and 

Page 10



promotion of bookable rooms is underway, targeting businesses, community 
groups and one-off events e.g. parties, celebrations and commercial hire. 

15.However, the average cost per occupied hour only measures the hours of 
occupancy by paid hirers. This doesn’t reflect the number of people using The 
Beacon and benefitting from it, for example, those who use the café, visit the 
town council or attend events booked by regular hirers. To better reflect the 
total usage of The Beacon, officers have looked at the cost per visit for 
2017/18. The total number of visitors to The Beacon in 2017/18 was 154,666. 
The resulting cost per visit was £1.55. This will be a key measure of 
performance for future years. 

16.A full benchmarking exercise is being undertaken to ensure that room rates 
remain competitive and attract and retain customers. 

KPI 3: Attract new audiences and users
17.During 2017/18 The Beacon has gained four new regular hirers and attracted 

new audiences by expanding the programme of events. Appendix A shows the 
geographical spread of customers, who attend shows at The Beacon. 
Audiences travel from across both the Vale and South Oxfordshire to attend, 
and the majority of customers attend an event once or twice a year. 

18.We have attracted acts, such as Phill Jupitus, Rich Hall, and Ray Parlour. The 
plan is to continue to secure a broad spectrum of acts to attract new audiences.  
2018/19 has live shows from comedians Sean Lock, Seann Walsh and Rory 
Bremner, and an audience with MasterChef presenter Gregg Wallace. 

19.The ongoing live performances from The National Theatre continue to prove 
popular, for example, King Lear with Ian McKellen.   

20.There has been a 67 per cent increase in ticket sales compared with 2016/17. 
Ticket sales in 2016/17 totalled 4,815 and this increased to 8,042 in 2017/18. 
More performances were introduced, and the cinema and panto performances 
continued to attract larger audiences. As this area of the business grows, ticket 
sales will be a key performance measure in future. 

KPI 4: Improve the customer experience to ensure repeat business

21.Customer service remains a top priority for The Beacon and the staff are 
regularly complimented for their excellent, friendly and efficient service. 

22.The Beacon is primarily a community venue and great emphasis is placed on 
working with the wider Vale of White Horse community and encouraging 
community activities. For example, an accomplished local musician performs 
free of charge in the coffee shop every Wednesday morning and has developed 
a loyal following of residents from the newly built retirement accommodation 
adjacent to The Beacon and local area. This is helping combat loneliness and 
isolation and has led to individuals joining other community events held at The 
Beacon. 

23.The menu available from the coffee shop has been reviewed and improved. It 
offers seasonal hot and cold food with healthy options and has resulted in 

Page 11



excellent feedback from customers and contributed to exceeding the income 
target for the coffee shop by £4,650.

24.We have also upgraded the building by replacing the blinds in all the rooms as 
well as making improvements to Lockinge; this included a new audio system as 
well as the hearing loop being upgraded.  The stage and wing curtains and 
stage drapes have been replaced with all new equipment to meet British 
Standards and to attract new users to this space, for example businesses for 
seminars / award evenings. 

Customer feedback

25.We have feedback cards in reception as well as on the reception desk and in 
the coffee shop and bar where customers can leave their comments and 
suggestions.  We aim to have compliments making up at least 80% of the 
comments received.  Feedback figures for 2017/18 are:

 87 compliments (94%)
 0 formal complaints made via the corporate complaints procedure (0%)
 4 negative comments or feedback around performances or facilities (4%)
 2 suggestions (2%)

Below are some of the comments, suggestions and complaints we received 
during 2017/18

Customer Comments
 A big thank you to all for hosting our wedding reception. The evening was a great 

success with everyone enjoying the venue, the food and the music.
 What a great night it was on Friday! We LOVE performing at The Beacon. Please 

pass on our thanks to the whole team there, they're all amazing.
 I want to congratulate you and your team for the wonderful line up in your new 

brochure. I will certainly be coming to more events this year!
 That was amazing music, a privilege to be there. Powerful set that will stay with 

me a long time. 👏 The Beacon for putting it together.

Suggestions
 What is happening with the live events is fantastic. We are so pleased to be able 

to walk to our local venue to see names like Jeremy Hardy and all of the NT Live, 
and we are hoping for more! I would love the ballet to be screened here from the 
Royal Opera House.

 Fantastic evening just a shame on arrival at 8:00… there were no cold beers left 
in the fridges! Poor effort considering it was a known sell out!

KPI 5: Raise awareness of the facility and improve communication 
26.We have continued to raise our profile through social media and our online 

presence:  

Online Audience growth 2016/17 2017/18

Mailing list subscribers 904 1,068 (+18%)

Facebook page likes 1195 1,514 (+27%)

Twitter followers 683 893 (+31%)

Page 12



27.The chart below shows a changing pattern in how customers learn of the 
activities and events taking place at The Beacon. There have been more 
referrals from social media platforms than in previous years. However, the top 
three referral methods are the website; a poster in the venue and word of 
mouth.   

Facebook: 
163
11%

Flyer – In School: 13
1%

Flyer – In Town: 40
3%

Flyer – Through 
Door: 187

13%

Mailing List: 167
11%

Newspaper – Advert: 
37
2%Newspaper - Article: 

11
1%Poster – In Town: 34

2%

Poster - In 
Venue: 222

15%

Previous Event At The 
Beacon: 123

8%

Radio: 1
0%

Twitter: 4
0%

Website – Other: 63
4%

Website – The 
Beacon: 222

15%

Word Of 
Mouth: 213

14%

Audience referral data for 2017/2018

This data has been taken from a sample of 1,500 ticket bookings over 2017/18. 

28.Plans for 2018/19 include a new marketing and promotion strategy reaching out 
to the wider VOWH community and seeking new markets and new platforms to 
promote The Beacon, including greater and better use of social media. 

Energy saving measures
29.Over the past year the staff have undertaken training on the Building 

Management System (BMS) so that it is now used to maximise efficiency. The 
BMS monitors and regulates the internal and external temperatures to ensure 
that rooms are heated or ventilated to the correct level automatically thus 
reducing the need for human intervention and rooms heated when not in use.  

30.External lighting has been replaced with energy efficient lighting which includes 
a SMART timer to ensure lights are only operational at required times. Funding 
for this was identified by the Councils Corporate Energy Officer. Also, current 
interior light bulbs are being replaced with energy efficient ones, once they 
have expired. This will result in longer service life of lighting and reduced 
energy costs.

Page 13



The Beacon as a community asset

31.Community centres such as The Beacon provide a vital meeting place 
and base for activities for communities across Vale of White Horse, local 
groups and business which are otherwise not catered for or available through 
private sector offerings. Centres, such as The Beacon are at the heart of local 
communities, and provide a place to meet friends, make new friends, learn new 
skills, keep fit and be entertained through music, film and drama. The Beacon 
provides social, cultural and educational activities for all ages and a place for 
people to get involved in the community’s life at a price that is affordable to all.  

32.The aim is to improve people’s quality of life by contributing to the social, 
physical, educational and health and wellbeing of the community including 
combating loneliness or social exclusion, particularly in the elderly or those with 
existing medical issues (physical or mental health).

33.The benefits of The Beacon as a community centre include:
 Providing the opportunity for people to be involved in a wide range of 

learning, social and physical activities to keep people active and part of the 
community.

 Providing an affordable and varied programme of entertainment and events 
which, when offered through the private sector, are often cost prohibitive to 
many individuals and families within Vale of White Horse. For example, the 
monthly cinema screenings cost £16 for family of 4 at The Beacon 
compared to c. £40 at a multiplex.

 Food bank occupies a room on the top floor which directly helps with the 
collection, storage and ultimately distribution of food to individuals and 
families in hardship in VOWH. 

 We are an informal point of contact in Wantage for council related queries. 
 We have many regular coffee shop customers (elderly and disabled) who 

come in for a drink and a chat with our staff, many are residents of the 
newly built retirement complexes. Our staff get to know these individuals 
and can often be the only contact that these residents have on a daily basis. 

 The public make use of the toilets when the public toilets in the town are 
closed. Often elderly residents and school children use our toilets as they 
feel safer at The Beacon.

Summary of plans for 2018/19 and beyond. 

34.All services in the council are currently undergoing an in-depth review of current 
and future budgets. For The Beacon this review will give direction and make 
recommendations into the new business plan and marketing plan for 2019 – 
2022.

35.The marketing activities of The Beacon is also being reviewed. The Beacon is 
already working closely with colleagues in Economic Development particularly 
the Economic Development Lead - Vale Towns, to use of both demographic 
and geographic data to allow The Beacon to offer activities and events that will 
appeal to more communities across the Vale of White Horse and beyond. The 
Beacon will also glean better and more in-depth customer insight from its 
existing and potential users to drive future programming and offerings to 

Page 14



increase user numbers and events that will add to the quality of life, health and 
wellbeing for the communities of Vale of White Horse. 

36.A new social media strategy will investigate new platforms and use existing 
platforms differently to engage with the community, promote events and 
activities and generate customer insight to drive improvement.

 
Conclusion 

37.The committee is asked to note this report on performance at The Beacon and 
make any further suggestions to the cabinet member for community services.

ADDENDUM

Incorrectly reported financial data in report dated 18 October 2018. 

38.Following a supplementary question asked at Scrutiny Committee on 18 
October 2018, it has come to light that the financial figures presented in the 
original report on the performance of The Beacon 2017/18 contained errors. 

39.The financial data and tables, plus accompanying commentary, presented in 
this report have been amended to correct these inaccuracies.

Investigation into the errors

40.Officers from corporate accountancy and community services worked together 
to determine the source of the errors in the report dated 18 October 2018. The 
following issues were identified: 

 The expenditure and income figures in the original report were not the most 
up to date figures on the general ledger. For all future reports, figures will be 
checked by both the service and accountancy against the general ledger. 

 The original figures did not take into account the estimated contract costs 
for Vinci, which had not been calculated at the time the first report was 
written. 

 We are now confident that all errors have been accounted for and corrected. 
 All staff, not just at The Beacon, will seek appropriate training and guidance 

relating to financial management and financial controls, as directed by 
management.  

 Where any local management information is held, a process is in place to 
regularly reconcile it to the general ledger. 

    

Page 15



     Appendix A  - Geographical spread of VOWH customers   

P
age 16



Geographical spread of SODC customers   

P
age 17



Scrutiny Committee

Report of Head of Partnership and Insight
Author: David Wilde
Telephone: 07540 349135
E-mail: david.wilde@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet member responsible: Roger Cox
Tel: 01367 243360
E-mail: roger.cox@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 7 February 2019

Corporate services contract changes 
and action plan update

Recommendation

To note the updated technology action plan attached at Annex A for the short term 
(one year) agreed at the Scrutiny Committee on 17 September 2018.

Purpose of Report

1. This report updates members on the progress to date against the action plan 
agreed in 2018 to address shortcomings in our IT or other corporate services 
contract service provision and, in particular, the five change control notices raised 
to address specific concerns at the time. 

Background

2. The action plan agreed in September 2018 was established to address the 
shortcomings in service provision by Capita under the five councils partnership 
contract

3. Part of the ongoing difficulties for the council was a lack of clear direction in terms 
of making the best use of technology to maximise operational efficiency and 
transform services. The technology strategy, approved in October 2018, brings this 
clarity. The delivery programme sets a clear direction for the next four years and is 
in the process of being established as an integral part of our business plans. 

4. The five change control notices raised in July 2018 have been progressed as 
follows:

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



2

 Return of the counterfraud service to South and Vale councils – completed in 
December 2018

 Return of all strategic finance responsibilities to South and Vale councils – 
completed in December 2018

 Transfer back of strategic HR responsibilities to South and Vale councils – this 
change is now being considered as part of a wider commercial conversation

 Finance system upgrade or replacement for South and Vale councils – this 
change was split into two: 

o On Pay360 the new system went live in December 2018 and the 
old Civica system has been retired

o On the finance system, the project has been fully defined and is 
ready to begin but there are ongoing commercial matters which 
need to be resolved

 Separation of active directories for South and Vale councils from the five 
councils shared platform – this change is now being considered as part of a 
wider commercial conversation.

Financial Implications

5. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  Any financial 
implications arising from the action plan are being addressed on a case by case 
basis. 

Legal Implications

6. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Risks

7. Much of the core IT infrastructure has been brought up to a suitable standard for 
delivery and the level of risk has reduced relative to the position in 2018, although 
we remain at risk of service outages and performance failures on a small number 
of business-critical systems whilst they are upgraded or replaced under the 
technology delivery programme.

Conclusion

8. Some progress has been made with turning around the services delivered by 
Capita under the corporate services contract, however performance remains a 
serious concern in several areas.  Elements of the services are currently subject to 
commercial renegotiation and cannot be discussed in detail at this time.

9. The technology delivery programme, working as part of our wider business plans, 
will ensure the councils are setting the direction they want for service 
transformation and the realisation of the potential that digital offers to meet the 
needs of our residents and business in the future.

Page 19



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

A B C D E H I J K L

Green Under way and on track Blue Complete

Amber In negotiation Grey End point

Red Off track (AP) Perm/successor lead

Activity Stream Project Lead Resourcing Funding approach Q1 July-Sept 18 Q2 Oct-Dec 2018 Q3 Jan-Mar 2019 Q4 Apr-Jun 2019 Q5 July-Sept 2019
Core IT 

turnaround Active Directory DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract

Contract change 
notice (CCN)

Directory designed and 
approved

Under commercial 
negotiation

End User Computing (EUC) DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract

CCN plus new 
devices for cllrs 

Standard EUC model 
defined and agreed

Deployed across workforce 
(LB)

Deployed to cllrs post-
election

Thin Client DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Service retirement plan 
agreed

Thin client services retired 
(LB)

Wifi consolidation LB

Hybrid 5Cs 
contract and S&V 
budgets Invest to save

Aligned with technology 
strategy and delivery 
programme

Business case completed, 
target go live April 2020

Network consolidation DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Aligned with technology 
strategy and delivery 
programme

Business case completed, 
target go live April 2020

Legacy datacentre closure LB

S&V budgets 
currently £37K pa Cost reduction Retirement plan agreed

5 systems retired and plans 
in place for 4 more to be 
completed before end March 
2019

3 services outstanding for 
commercial reasons, 
contract extended 6 months Legacy detacentre retired

Print services LB S&V budgets Invest to save Procurement path agreed
New contract awarded and 
service implemented Old print service retired

Web sites replaced AP

To be funded from 
legacy DC closure 
est. £10K

Draw from legacy 
datacentre saving

Web site replacement 
project commenced, hosting 
costs to be resolved

New sites designed, hosting 
procured and content 
migration plan complete

New sites live, legacy sites 
retired

Finance system upgrade DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Upgrade plan for system 
designed and agreed

Upgrade project not initiated, 
under commercial 
negotiation

Banking and payments system 
upgrade BW S&V Budgets Invest to save

Plan for migration to Pay360 
agreed

Pay360 designed, built and 
implemented Icon legacy system retired

Core services 

reshaped Finance Business Partners SH

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Revised service design 
agreed

Resource transferred, 
Finance Operating Model 
agreed Go live of Finance TOM

Strategic HR AP

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Revised service design 
agreed

HR Operating Model put 
under review for all 5 
Councils partners

Under commercial 
negotiation

Revenues and Benefits Fraud PH

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Revised service design 
agreed

Resource transferred, 
Service enhancement plans 
developed

Roadmap to be the best 
agreed and implemented in 
business plans

Technology 

strategy Enterprise Architecture DW S&V budgets
IT Enterprise Architecture 
baselined

Future state Enterprise 
Architecture designed

Architecture owned by Client 
Team and embedded in 
technology roadmaps (AP)

IT Target Operating Model DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract CCN

Revised fit for purpose IT 
TOM designed

Service management and 
S&V in-house IT team 
designed and agreed

Under commercial 
negotiation

Telephony Systems DW

Covered by 5Cs 
contract Invest to save

Consolidation plan for voice 
services designed and 
agreed

Aligned with technology 
strategy and delivery 
programme

Business case completed, 
target go live April 2020

Unified Communications DW

Hybrid 5Cs 
contract and S&V 
budgets Invest to save

Aligned with technology 
strategy and delivery 
programme

Business case completed, 
target go live April 2020

Technology Strategy document DW S&V budgets

Technology strategy drafted 
and agreed with Senior 
Leadership

Technology roadmaps DW S&V budgets

Technology roadmaps 
integrated into business 
plans 

S&V in-house IT team tracks 
roadmaps and owns 
Architecture and relationship 
management (LB)

P
age 20



1

2

3

4

A B C D E H I J K L

Green Under way and on track Blue Complete

Amber In negotiation Grey End point

Red Off track (AP) Perm/successor lead

Activity Stream Project Lead Resourcing Funding approach Q1 July-Sept 18 Q2 Oct-Dec 2018 Q3 Jan-Mar 2019 Q4 Apr-Jun 2019 Q5 July-Sept 2019

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Organisational 

Development Mobile and digital AP S&V budgets Core service
Workforce policies revised to 
adopt principles

Workforce transitioned to 
new model supported by 
technology changes

Revised estates policy to 
maximise new workforce 
model opportunities

Core workforce principles AP S&V Budgets Core service

Roadmap for skills uplift and 
productivity designed and 
agreed

New model agreed with 
Trade Unions and staff Implement new model

Capability roadmap AP S&V Budgets Core service
Define capability model for 
workforce

New model agreed with 
Trade Unions and staff Implement new model

Key for Leads:

DW David Wilde

AP Adrianna Partridge

LB Lee Brown

SH Simon Hewings

BW Ben Watson

PH Paul Howden

P
age 21



18 January 2019

Schedule for Scrutiny Committees 

(further items to be added to schedule as required)

Meeting 
date

Council Agenda items Purpose of Report Invited Cabinet members Report Author Head of Service Strategic 
Lead

Thurs 7 
March

Joint
Chair: 
Debby 
Hallett

5CP services brought back 
in-house

To consider costs and other 
implications of bringing 
outsourced services back in-
house

Various Andrew Down

Tues 26 
March

South Capita performance: HR, 
payroll and IT

Corporate Delivery Plan 
Progress Report

To review the performance 
of the council’s contractor

Regular Monitoring Report

Bill Service

Kevin Bulmer

Andrew Down

Sally Truman

Andrew Down

Adrianna 
Partridge

Adrianna 
Partridge

Thurs 28 
March

Vale Parliamentary report on 
scrutiny effectiveness.

Authority Monitoring 
Report 2017/18

Budget Scrutiny Task 
Group

To consider the report

Regular Monitoring Report

To consider the Task Group 
report

n/a

Roger Cox

Robert Sharp

Adrianna 
Partridge

Ben Duffy

Task Group

Adrianna 
Partridge

Adrian Duffield

William Jacobs

Adrianna 
Partridge

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 9



18 January 2019

Dates to be identified for the following items:
South
Planning Appeals (requested 26.9.17)
Performance Review of Cornerstone
Air Quality Action Plan

Vale
Oxfordshire Growth Board Governance Arrangements
Abingdon Redevelopment: Charter Centre
HMO Policy and Strategy

Joint
Science Vale Marketing Campaign
Reallocation of £295k Didcot Garden Town Grant
Unlawful encampments

The Cabinet work programmes can be accessed via the following links:
South
http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
Vale
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0
Meeting Start times: Joint: 6:30; South: 6:30; Vale: 7.00;

Scrutiny Work Item Preparation
Members are invited to consider the following headings for future agenda items
Item name
Date of report to Committee 
What do we want to know about? What topics should the report provider include in their report to Scrutiny?
Who to invite to Committee? (Cabinet member(s) and Head(s) of Service). Anyone from outside agencies? 

P
age 23

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 2017/18 performance report for The Beacon, Wantage.
	8 Corporate services contract changes and action plan update
	Copy of Annex A South and Vale technology action plan 2018-19 v4 updated 28 Jan 2019

	9 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings



